Minutes of the Meeting Rules Committee of the Superior Court Monday, February 8, 2021

On February 8, 2021, the Rules Committee met using Microsoft Teams from 2:01

p.m. to 3:17 p.m.

Members in attendance were:

HON. ANDREW J. McDONALD, CHAIR HON. HOLLY ABERY-WETSTONE HON. BARBARA N. BELLIS HON. SUSAN QUINN COBB HON. JOHN B. FARLEY HON. TAMMY T. NGUYEN-O'DOWD HON. SHEILA M. PRATS HON. ANTHONY D. TRUGLIA JR.

Also in attendance were Joseph J. Del Ciampo, Counsel to the Rules Committee,

and Lori Petruzzelli and Shanna O'Donnell, Assistant Counsel to the Rules Committee.

Judge Alex V. Hernandez was absent.

1. The Committee approved the minutes of the meeting held on January 11, 2021,

with no revisions.

2. The Committee considered a proposal regarding standard written discovery in

medical malpractice cases and subsequent revised proposals from the subcommittee

established to work on this matter (RC ID # 2019-003).

After discussion, the Committee voted unanimously to submit to public hearing the

revised proposal for standard written discovery in medical malpractice cases, as set forth

in Appendix A to these minutes. The Committee authorized counsel to make certain technical changes, as appropriate, including the renumbering of a reference to interrogatory 17.

3. The Committee considered a proposal from Senator Looney, Senator Winfield, and Representative Stafstrom concerning pre-trial discovery procedure in criminal matters and subsequent revised proposals from the subcommittee (RC ID # 2019-014).

Judge Gold was present and addressed the Committee. He requested that the matter be tabled to allow additional time for him to confer with Senator Winfield.

After discussion, the Committee granted his request and tabled the matter until the March meeting.

4. The Committee considered a proposal from Attorney Megan Wade to adopt the American Bar Association's Rule of Professional Conduct 8.4 (g), regarding harassing or discriminatory conduct, and a substitute proposal from the Connecticut Bar Association concerning Proposed Amended Rule 8.4 (7) (RC ID # 2020-012).

Statewide Bar Counsel Michael Bowler; Cecil Thomas, President of the Connecticut Bar Association; and Marcy Stovall, of the Connecticut Bar Association Standing Committee on Professional Ethics, were present and addressed the Committee regarding this proposal.

After discussion, the Committee voted to submit to public hearing the proposal to amend Rule 8.4, as set forth in Appendix B to these minutes. Judge Bellis voted against submitting the proposal to public hearing. 5. The Committee considered proposals from Techo Kim to adopt a code of conduct for judicial employees; to form an independent body to investigate complaints of court clerk misconduct; and to create rules to distinguish which clerk responsibilities are judicial and which are ministerial (RC ID # 2020-020).

After discussion, the Committee tabled this proposal indefinitely.

 The Committee considered a proposal from Jeff Gentes of the Connecticut Fair Housing Center to amend Section 3-8 (b) concerning limited scope appearances (RC ID # 2021-001).

After discussion, the Committee tabled this proposal indefinitely.

7. The Committee considered a proposal from Judge Conway for changes to the Practice Book consistent with the Supreme Court's decision in *In re Zakai F.* (SC 20234) (RC ID # 2021-002).

After discussion, the Committee voted unanimously to submit to public hearing the amendments to Section 35a-20 and new Section 35a-20A of the Practice Book to be consistent with the Supreme Court's decision in *In re Zakai F.*, as set forth in Appendix C to these minutes.

8. The Committee considered a proposal from the Statewide Grievance Committee for an amendment to Section 2-27 (d) concerning attorneys' home addresses (RC ID # 2021-003).

Statewide Bar Counsel Michael Bowler was present and addressed the Committee regarding this proposal.

RC Draft Minutes 2-8-21

After discussion, the Committee voted unanimously to submit to public hearing the amendments to Section 2-27 concerning attorneys' home addresses, as set forth in Appendix D to these minutes.

9. The Committee considered a proposal from the Connecticut Bar Association to revise Rule 1.8 of the Rules of Professional Conduct to allow for an exception to the prohibition on attorneys providing financial assistance to clients in litigation matters in limited circumstances, on humanitarian grounds, in accordance with the American Bar Association's Model Rules of Professional Conduct (RC ID 2021-004).

Marcy Stovall of the Connecticut Bar Association Standing Committee on Professional Ethics was present and addressed the Committee regarding this proposal.

After discussion, the Committee tabled this matter until the March meeting to allow Attorney Stovall to submit a revised proposal to address certain technical inconsistencies.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph J. Del Ciampo Counsel to the Rules Committee

APPENDIX A

(020821)

Sec. 13-6. Interrogatories; In General

(a) In any civil action, in any probate appeal, or in any administrative appeal where the judicial authority finds it reasonably probable that evidence outside the record will be required, any party may serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 written interrogatories, which may be in electronic format, upon any other party to be answered by the party served. Written interrogatories may be served upon any party without leave of the judicial authority at any time after the return day. Except as provided in subsection (d) or where the interrogatories are served electronically as provided in Section 10-13 and in a format that allows the recipient to electronically insert the answers in the transmitted document, the party serving interrogatories shall leave sufficient space following each interrogatory in which the party to whom the interrogatories are directed can insert the answer. In the event that an answer requires more space than that provided on interrogatories that were not served electronically and in a format that allows the recipient to electronically insert the answers in the transmitted document, the answer shall be continued on a separate sheet of paper which shall be attached to the completed answers.

(b) Interrogatories may relate to any matters which can be inquired into under Sections 13-2 through 13-5, and the answers may be used at trial to the extent permitted by the rules of evidence. In all personal injury actions alleging liability based on the operation or ownership of a motor vehicle or alleging liability based on the ownership,

maintenance or control of real property, or in actions claiming a loss of consortium or uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage benefits, the interrogatories shall be limited to those set forth in Forms 201, 202, 203, 208, 210, 212, 213 and/or 214 of the rules of practice, unless upon motion, the judicial authority determines that such interrogatories are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. These forms are set forth in the Appendix of Forms in this volume. Unless the judicial authority orders otherwise, the frequency of use of interrogatories in all actions except those for which interrogatories have been set forth in Forms 201, 202, 203, 208, 210, 212, 213 [and/or], 214, <u>218, 220</u> and/or 221 of the rules of practice is not limited.

(c) In all actions alleging medical negligence, the interrogatories shall be limited to: (1) those set forth in Forms 218, 220, and 221 of the rules of practice and contained in the Appendix of Forms in this volume to which no objections shall be allowed; and (2) twenty additional interrogatories as of right, which may not contain subparts. The party to whom the additional twenty as of right interrogatories are directed may file specific, individual objections to each additional as of right interrogatory.

[(c)] (d) The standard interrogatories in civil actions, including standard and as of right additional interrogatories in medical negligence actions, are intended to address discovery needs in most cases in which their use is mandated, but they do not preclude any party from moving for permission to serve such additional discovery as may be necessary in any particular case as contemplated by Section 13-2.

[(d)] (e) In lieu of serving the interrogatories set forth in Forms 201, 202, 203, 208, 210, 212, 213 [and/ or], 214, <u>218, 220, and/or 221</u> of the rules of practice on a party who

is represented by counsel, the moving party may serve on such party a notice of interrogatories, which shall not include the actual interrogatories to be answered, but shall instead set forth the number of the Practice Book form containing such interrogatories and the name of the party to whom the interrogatories are directed. The party to whom such notice is directed shall in his or her response set forth each interrogatory immediately followed by that party's answer thereto.

[(e)] (f) The party serving interrogatories or the notice of interrogatories shall not file them with the court.

[(f)] (g) Unless leave of court is granted, the instructions to Forms 201 through 203 are to be used for all nonstandard interrogatories.

COMMENTARY: The changes to this section provide that in all actions alleging medical negligence, the interrogatories are limited to those in new Forms 218, 220, and 221, and twenty additional interrogatories as of right. No objections shall be allowed to the interrogatories set out in the cited forms. The party to whom the additional twenty as of right interrogatories are directed may file specific, individual objections to each such additional interrogatory.

Sec. 13-9. Requests for Production, Inspection and Examination; In General

(a) In any civil action, in any probate appeal, or in any administrative appeal where the judicial authority finds it reasonably probable that evidence outside the record will be required, any party may serve in accordance with Sections 10-12 through 10-17 upon any other party a request to afford the party submitting the request the opportunity to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce designated documents or to inspect and copy, test or sample any tangible things in the possession, custody or control of the party upon whom the request is served or to permit entry upon designated land or other property for the purpose of inspection, measuring, surveying, photographing, testing or sampling the property or any designated object or operation thereon. Such requests will be governed by the provisions of Sections 13-2 through 13-5. In all personal injury actions alleging liability based on the operation or ownership of a motor vehicle or alleging liability based on the operation or control of real property, or in actions claiming a loss of consortium or uninsured/underinsured motorist coverage benefits, the requests for production shall be limited to those set forth in Forms 204, 205, 206, 209, 211, 215 and/or 216 of the rules of practice, unless, upon motion, the judicial authority determines that such requests for production are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. These forms are set forth in the Appendix of Forms in this volume.

(b) In all actions alleging medical negligence, production requests shall be limited to: (1) those set forth in Forms 219, 222, and 223 of the rules of practice and contained in the Appendix of Forms in this volume and (2) twenty additional production requests as of right, which may not contain subparts. The party to whom the additional twenty as of right requests are directed may file specific, individual objections to each additional as of right production request. A party may move for permission to file additional discovery, which the judicial authority shall permit if it determines that such requests for production filed to date are inappropriate or inadequate in the particular action. [(b)] (c) The standard requests for production are intended to address discovery needs in most cases in which their use is mandated, but they do not preclude any party from moving for permission to serve such additional discovery as may be necessary in any particular case.

[(c)] (d) Requests for production may be served upon any party without leave of court at any time after the return day. In lieu of serving the requests for production set forth in Forms 204, 205, 206, 209, 211, 215 [and/or], 216, <u>219, 222 and/or 223</u> of the rules of practice on a party who is represented by counsel, the moving party may serve on such party a notice of requests for production, which shall not include the actual requests, but shall instead set forth the number of the Practice Book form containing such requests and the name of the party to whom the requests are directed.

[(d)] (e) The request shall clearly designate the items to be inspected either individually or by category. The request or, if applicable, the notice of requests for production shall specify a reasonable time, place and manner of making the inspection. Unless the judicial authority orders otherwise, the frequency of use of requests for production in all actions except those for which requests for production have been set forth in Forms 204, 205, 206, 209, 211, 215 [and/or], 216, <u>219, 222, and/or 223</u> of the rules of practice is not limited.

[(e)] (f) If information has been electronically stored, and if a request for production does not specify a form for producing a type of electronically stored information, the responding party shall produce the information in a form in which it is ordinarily maintained

or in a form that is reasonably usable. A party need not produce the same electronically stored information in more than one form.

[(f)] (g) The party serving such request or notice of requests for production shall not file it with the court.

[(g)] (h) Unless leave of court is granted, the instructions to Forms 204 through 206 of the rules of practice are to be used for all nonstandard requests for production.

[(h)] (i) A party seeking the production of a written authorization in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act to inspect and make copies of protected health information, or a written authorization in compliance with the Public Health Service Act to inspect and make copies of alcohol and drug records that are protected by that act, shall file a motion pursuant to Section 13-11A. A motion need not be filed to obtain such authorization in actions to which Forms 204, 205 [and], 216, 219, 222, and 223 of the rules of practice apply.

COMMENTARY: The changes to this section provide that in all actions alleging medical negligence, production requests shall be limited to those in new Forms 219, 222, and 223, and twenty additional requests for production as of right. The party to whom the additional twenty as of right requests are directed may file specific, individual objections to each such additional request. Upon motion of any party, the judicial authority shall permit additional discovery if it is determined that such requests for production filed to date are inappropriate or inadequate in a particular action.

(New) Form 218

Defendant's Interrogatories Medical Negligence

NO. CV -(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) :SUPERIOR COURT :JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF :AT :DATE

The undersigned, on behalf of the Defendant, hereby propounds the following interrogatories to be answered by the Plaintiff, ______, under oath, within sixty (60) days of the filing hereof in compliance with Practice Book Section 13-2.

Definition: "You" or "your" shall mean the Plaintiff to whom these interrogatories are directed, except that if a lawsuit has been instituted by the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Plaintiff's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

In answering these interrogatories, the Plaintiff(s) is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full and do not limit the answer to the interrogatory as a whole. If any interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

(1) State the following:

- (a) Your full name and any other name(s) by which you have been known;
- (b) Your date of birth;
- (c) Your current home address;
- (d) Your home address as of the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint; and
- (e) Your home address for the five years prior to and since the negligence alleged in the Complaint.
- (2) State your marital status at the time of and since the negligence alleged in the Complaint and, if married, provide the date of the marriage, the full legal name, and current address of your spouse.
- (3) State the full legal names and ages of each person with whom you have lived at or since the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint and identify each time period.
- (4) State the full legal names and ages of your children. For each child, identify the time periods during which they resided with you at or since the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.

- (5) Identify and list each physical and mental injury or condition you claim to have sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.
- (6) If you were treated at a hospital for injuries and conditions sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state the name and location of each hospital and the dates of such treatment and admission.
- (7) State the name and address of each physician or other health care provider who treated you for the injuries and conditions you sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.
- (8) When and from whom did you last receive any medical treatment for injuries and conditions alleged to have been sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint?
- (9) Identify the date you last received medical services or treatment from the Defendant.
- (10) State the date you fully recovered from the injuries and conditions alleged in your Complaint?
- (11) If you are not fully recovered, state precisely from what injuries and conditions you are presently suffering.
- (12) Are you presently under the care of any physician or other health care provider for the treatment of injuries and conditions alleged to have been sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint?
- (13) If the answer to the prior interrogatory is in the affirmative, state the name and address of each physician or other health care provider who is treating you.
- (14) Do you claim any disability resulting from injuries and conditions allegedly sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint?
- (15) If so, state the nature of the disability claimed.
- (16) Do you claim any permanent disability resulting from the negligence alleged in the Complaint?
- (17) If the answer to the prior interrogatory is in the affirmative, answer the following:
 - (a) List the parts of your body which are disabled;
 - (b) List the motions, activities or use of your body which you have lost or which you are unable to perform;
 - (c) State the percentage of loss of use claimed as to each part of your body;
 - (d) State the name and address of the person who made the prognosis for permanent disability and the percentage of loss of use; and

- (e) List the date for each such prognosis.
- (18) If you were or are confined to your home or your bed as a result of injuries and conditions sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint, state the dates you were so confined.
- (19) Identify any nonprivileged medical reports received by you or your attorney relating to your alleged injuries and conditions by stating the name and address of the treating physician or other health care provider, and any physician or health care provider you anticipate calling as a trial witness, who provided such reports and the date of the report.
- (20) List each item of expense which you claim to have incurred as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint, and state the name and address of the person or organization to whom each item has been paid or is payable.
- (21) For each item of expense identified in response to the prior interrogatory, if any such expense, or portion thereof, has been paid or reimbursed or is reimbursable by an insurer, state, as to each such item of expense, the name of the insurer that made such payment or reimbursement or that is responsible for such reimbursement.
- (22) If, during the ten year period prior to the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint, you were under a physician's or other health care provider's care for any conditions which were in any way similar or related to those identified and listed in your response to Interrogatory #5, state the nature of said injuries or conditions, the dates you received treatment, and the name of the physician or other health care provider who provided treatment for the prior condition.
- (23) State whether you have ever filed a claim or lawsuit for physical or mental injury or condition. If so, state the caption, venue and docket number of any such lawsuit.
- (24) If you were involved in any incident in which you received physical or mental injuries or conditions since the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint, provide the following information:
 - (a) On what date and in what manner did you sustain said injuries?
 - (b) Did you make a claim against anyone as a result of said incident?
 - (c) If so, provide the name and address of the person or persons against whom a claim was made;
 - (d) If a lawsuit was brought, state the name and location of the Court, the return date of the lawsuit, and the docket number;
 - (e) State the nature of the physical or mental injuries or conditions received in said incident;
 - (f) State the name and address of each physician or health care provider who treated you for said injuries or conditions;
 - (g) State the dates on which you were so treated;
 - (h) State the nature of the treatment received on each such date; and

- (i) If you are presently or permanently disabled as a result of said injuries, state the nature of such disability, the name and address of each physician or health care provider who diagnosed said disability and the date of each such diagnosis.
- (25) At the time of the negligence alleged in your Complaint or thereafter, have you filed a personal bankruptcy petition? If yes, identify the type of bankruptcy, the court and court address, caption and docket number, name and address of trustee and whether the petition is pending or has been discharged.
- (26) List all secondary schools and colleges you attended, the years attended, and degrees conferred, if any.
- (27) If you claim that as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint you were prevented from pursuing your usual occupation, or otherwise lost time from work, provide the following information:
 - (a) The name and address of your employer on the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint;
 - (b) The nature of your occupation and a precise description of your job responsibilities with said employer on the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint;
 - (c) Your average, weekly earnings, salary, or income received from said employment for the year preceding the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint;
 - (d) The date following the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint on which you resumed the duties of said employment;
 - (e) Any loss of income you claim resulted from the negligence alleged in your Complaint and how the loss is computed;
 - (f) The dates you were unable to perform the duties and lost time from work as a result of injuries or conditions claimed to have been sustained as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint; and
 - (g) The names and addresses of each employer for whom you worked for three years prior to the date of the negligence alleged in your Complaint.
- (28) Do you claim an impairment of earning capacity?
- (29) State whether you made an application(s) for life/disability insurance in the past ten years, and if so state the date of the application(s).
- (30) Identify the administrative/funeral and burial expenses incurred on behalf of the Plaintiff, if applicable, as well as the date such expenses were incurred, the recipient of such monies and the identity of the individual who paid such expenses.
- (31) If you are introducing the condition of your mental health as an element of a claim in this lawsuit, state whether you have sought treatment with a mental health provider, including

but not limited to a psychiatrist, psychologist, therapist, or counselor, in the ten years prior to, or subsequent to the negligence alleged in the Complaint.

COMMENT:

Where appropriate, and where the Plaintiff does not consent to the production of the mental health records, the Defendant may seek a court order for the production of the records.

- (32) Has any treating physician or other health care provider told you directly that the abovenamed Defendant(s) failed to adhere to the acceptable standard of care in any respect?
- (33) If the answer to the preceding interrogatory is in the affirmative, state the name and address of each such physician or health care provider, the date each communication was made and the content of any such communication.
- (34) If you have signed a covenant not to sue, a release or discharge of any claim you had, have or may have against any person, corporation or other entity as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint, state in whose favor it was given, the date thereof, and to the extent it is not subject to a confidentiality agreement, the consideration paid to you for giving it. If you are unable to respond to this interrogatory, in whole or in part, due to a confidentiality agreement, state so.
- (35) If you or anyone on your behalf agreed to or contracted with any person, corporation or other entity to limit in any way the liability of such person, corporation or other entity as a result of any claim you have or may have as a result of the negligence alleged in your Complaint, state in whose favor it was given, the date thereof, and to the extent it is not subject to a confidentiality agreement, the consideration paid to you for giving it. If you are unable to respond to this interrogatory due to a confidentiality agreement, state so.
- (36) State the names and addresses of all persons known to you who were present at the time of the negligence alleged in your Complaint or who observed or witnessed all or part of the care provided by the Defendant.
- (37) As to each individual named in response to the preceding interrogatory, state whether to your knowledge, or the knowledge of your attorney, such individual has given any statement or statements as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1 concerning the subject matter of your Complaint or alleged injuries and conditions. If your answer to this interrogatory is affirmative, state also:
 - (a) The date on which such statement or statements were taken;
 - (b) The names and addresses of the person or persons who took such statement or statements;
 - (c) The names and addresses of any person or persons present when such statement or statements were taken;

- (d) Whether such statement or statements were written, made by recording device or taken by court reporter or stenographer; and
- (e) The names and addresses of any person or persons having custody or a copy or copies of such statement or statements.
- (38) Have you made any statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, to any person regarding any of the events alleged in your Complaint?
- (39) State the name and address of any person(s) who you may call as a fact witness at trial of this matter regarding the claims of damage alleged by Plaintiff(s) in the Complaint.

COMMENT:

These individuals or witnesses shall be disclosed, except for good cause shown, no later than sixty days prior to trial and may be thereafter deposed.

- (40) Have you documented in any form any of the events, injuries, or conditions alleged in your Complaint? State whether any privilege is claimed.
- (41) Are you aware of any photographs or any recordings by film, video, audio or any other digital or electronic means depicting the negligence alleged in the Complaint, the care provided by the Defendant or any injury or condition alleged to have been caused by the negligence alleged in the Complaint? If so, for each set of photographs or each recording taken, obtained or prepared of each such subject, state:
 - (a) The name and address of the person who took, obtained or prepared such photograph or recording, other than an expert who will not testify at trial;
 - (b) The dates on which such photographs were taken or such recordings were obtained or prepared;
 - (c) The subject;
 - (d) The number of photographs or recordings;
 - (e) The nature of the recording (e.g., film, video, audio, etc.).
- (42) Identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcript thereof which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each such recordings were obtained and the person or persons of whom each such recording was made.
- (43) Have you ever filed a claim/application for Social Security Disability and/or any form of government disability including military?
- (44) If the answer to the preceding interrogatory is in the affirmative, state:

- (a) The dates of all such applications;
- (b) The reasons for seeking disability, including all listed medical conditions;
- (c) How the listed medical conditions caused you to be disabled;
- (d) The dates you were deemed disabled;
- (e) The names and addresses of any physicians or health care providers whom you saw for disability evaluations; and,
- (f) The address of any disability offices involved in obtaining such benefits.

Interrogatories #45 through #52 apply in wrongful death cases:

- (45) If the decedent underwent a physical examination for any reason including, but not limited to, examinations related to employment, or employment applications within the five (5) years prior to the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint, please state:
 - (a) The date(s) the exam was performed; and
 - (b) The name and address of the physician or health care provider who performed each exam.
- (46) If a claim for loss of earning capacity is being made, please state the decedent's average monthly personal living expenses for the two (2) years preceding his/her death including, but not limited to, the decedent's food, rent and housing, clothing, transportation, and medical and dental care.
- (47) Did the decedent suffer from any illness, injury, disease, condition, disability or defect from the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint to the time of death? If so, please identify the illness, injury, disease, condition, disability or defect.
- (48) If you are claiming that any preexisting physical or mental condition exacerbated, contributed to, or accelerated the decedent's death, identify the condition(s) and physician or health care provider(s) treating the decedent for those condition(s) in the ten years prior to his or her death.
- (49) Other than what is contained in the medical records, are you aware of any treating physician, physician's assistant (P.A.), or advanced practice registered nurse (APRN) who discussed the primary cause of the decedent's death with a patient representative? If so, please identify that individual and the substance of that conversation.
- (50) Was an autopsy and/or postmortem toxicology testing ever performed on the decedent? If the answer is yes, state:
 - (a) The name of the person who ordered or requested the autopsy;
 - (b) The date the autopsy was performed;
 - (c) The place where the autopsy was performed;

- (d) The name of the individual who performed the autopsy; and
- (e) The findings of the autopsy and/or postmortem toxicology testing.
- (51) Have any entries, memoranda, and/or declarations, as defined in General Statutes § 52-172, been made by the Plaintiff concerning the issues alleged in the Complaint?
- (52) If the answer to the foregoing interrogatory is affirmative, state:
 - (a) The date on which such entries, memoranda, and/or declarations were made;
 - (b) The form of the entries, memoranda, and/or declarations (i.e., whether oral, written, made by recording device or recorded by a stenographer, etc.);
 - (c) The substance or content of such entries, memoranda, and/or declarations;
 - (d) The name and address of each person having custody or a copy or copies of the entries, memoranda, and/or declarations; and
 - (e) The name and address of any witnesses to such entries, memoranda, and/or declarations.

Interrogatory #53 applies to cases involving a minor Plaintiff:

- (53) If the minor Plaintiff attends or has attended a day care, preschool, school or camp on a regular basis from the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint to the present time, state:
 - (a) The name and address of the institution or facility;
 - (b) The amount of time each day that the minor Plaintiff attended there; and,
 - (c) The dates of attendance.

DEFENDANT,

BY_____

I,_____, hereby certify that I have reviewed the above interrogatories and responses thereto and that they are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

(Plaintiff)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____, 20___.

Notary Public/ Commissioner of the Superior Court

CERTIFICATION

I certify that a copy of this document was or will immediately be mailed or delivered electronically or non-electronically on (date) _____ to all attorneys and self-represented parties of record and that written consent for electronic delivery was received from all attorneys and self-represented parties of record who received or will immediately be receiving electronic delivery.

Name and address of each party and attorney that copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to*

*If necessary, attach additional sheet or sheets with the name and address which the copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to.

Signed (signature of filer)

Print or type name of person signing

Date Signed

Mailing address (Number, street, town, state and zip code) and Email address, if applicable Telephone number

COMMENTARY: This new form was developed pursuant to and is to be used in connection with the changes to Section 13-6.

(New) Form 219

Defendant's Request for Production Medical Negligence

NO. CV -(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) :SUPERIOR COURT :JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF :AT :DATE

The Defendant(s) hereby request(s) that the Plaintiff provide counsel for the Defendant(s) with copies of the documents described in the following requests for production, or afford counsel for said Defendant(s) the opportunity or, where requested, sufficient written authorization, to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce said documents. The production of such documents, copies or written authorizations shall take place at the offices of ______ not later than sixty (60) days after the service of the Requests for Production.

In answering these production requests, the Plaintiff(s) are required to provide all information within their possession, custody or control. If any production request cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) All hospital records relating to treatment received as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint, and to injuries, diseases or defects to which reference is made in the answers to Interrogatories #6 and #24 (exclusive of any records relating to mental health injuries or conditions), or written authorization, sufficient to comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), to inspect and make copies of the hospital records. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the above captioned action.
- (2) All reports and records of all physicians and other health care providers relating to treatment allegedly received by the Plaintiff(s) as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint and to the injuries, diseases or defects to which reference is made in the answers to Interrogatories #7, #22, and #24 (exclusive of any records relating to mental health injuries or conditions) or written authorization, sufficient to comply with provisions of HIPAA, to inspect and make copies of said reports. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the above captioned action.
- (3) If a claim of impaired earning capacity or lost wages is being alleged, copies of, or sufficient written authorization to obtain copies of, that part of all income tax returns relating to lost income filed by the Plaintiff(s) for a period of three (3) years prior to the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint and for all years subsequent to the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint through the time of trial.
- (4) If a claim for lost wages or lost earning capacity is being made, copies of, or sufficient written authorization to inspect and make copies of, the wage and employment records of all

employers of the Plaintiff(s) for three (3) years prior to the negligence alleged in the Complaint and for all years subsequent to the date of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.

- (5) A copy of any nonprivileged statement, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, of any party to this lawsuit concerning this action or its subject matter.
- (6) All medical bills that are claimed to have been incurred as a result of the negligence alleged in the Complaint or written authorization, sufficient to comply with the provisions of HIPAA, to inspect and make copies of said medical bills. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the above captioned action.
- (7) All bills for each item of expense that are claimed to have been incurred in the answer to Interrogatories #20 and #30, and not already provided in response to Production Request #6.
- (8) Copies of all documents pertaining to claims of right to reimbursement provided to the Plaintiff by third-party payers, and copies of, or written authorization, sufficient to comply with provisions of HIPAA, to obtain any and all documentation of payments made by a third party for medical services received or premiums paid to obtain such payment. Information obtained pursuant to the provisions of HIPAA shall not be used or disclosed by the parties for any purpose other than the above-captioned action.
- (9) All documents identified or referred to in the answers to Interrogatory #34 unless a claim of confidentiality has been stated.
- (10) Nonprivileged copies, whether in hard copies or electronic media, of any and all documentation referenced in Interrogatory #40.
- (11) A copy of each and every recording of surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party to this lawsuit concerning this lawsuit or the subject matter thereof, including any transcript of such recording.
- (12) Copies of any and all documents and communications concerning any and all of your disability claim(s) with the issuing governmental office as set forth in Interrogatory #43, excluding any material which is claimed to be protected by attorney-client privilege or other applicable privilege. In addition, written authorization, in the form attached, permitting the undersigned to obtain a full and complete copy of Plaintiff's social security disability file.
- (13) Any and all photographs or recordings identified in response to Interrogatory #41.

Requests for Production #14 through 19 apply in wrongful death cases:

(14) A copy of the probate appointment, identifying the Plaintiff as Administrator of the subject estate.

- (15) A copy of the death certificate.
- (16) A copy of any autopsy report and/or postmortem toxicology testing report.
- (17) Copies of declarations of the Plaintiff that your attorney intends to use at time of trial pursuant to General Statutes § 52-172.
- (18) Any documents, written or digital recordings, entries, memoranda, and/or transcripts of digital recordings offered pursuant to General Statutes § 52-174.
- (19) Copies copy of or an authorization to obtain the records referenced in Interrogatory #45.

Request for Production #20 applies to cases involving a minor Plaintiff:

(20) Copies of all education records, attendance records, nurses' records, and materials from each day care, preschool, school, or other educational institution the minor Plaintiff has attended (exclusive of any records relating to mental health injuries or conditions) for the last five years to the present or written authorization in the form attached permitting the undersigned to inspect and to make copies of said educational records.

DEFENDANT,

BY_____

CERTIFICATION

I certify that a copy of this document was or will immediately be mailed or delivered electronically or non-electronically on (date) _________to all attorneys and self-represented parties of record and that written consent for electronic delivery was received from all attorneys and self-represented parties of record who received or will immediately be receiving electronic delivery.

Name and address of each party and attorney that copy was or will immediately be mailed or

delivered to*

*If necessary, attach additional sheet or sheets with the name and address which the copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to.

Signed (signature of filer)

Print or type name of person signing

Date Signed

Mailing address (Number, street, town, state and zip code) and Email address, if applicable

Telephone number

COMMENTARY: This new form was developed pursuant to and is to be used in connection with the changes to Section 13-9.

EDUCATION / SCHOOL RECORDS AUTHORIZATION

TO:

(Any educational institution, including any school, special education program, remedial education program, developmental program, including special treatment, teacher aides and assistance that has provided educational services to):

(insert name above)

I hereby authorize you to release copies of the records of ______

_____, including educational records to **[**defense**

firm name**], or its authorized representative. "Educational records" for purposes of this

authorization shall include, but not be limited to, attendance records, medical records,

occupational therapy records, nurses' notes, progress reports, teacher notes, report cards,

achievement scores, evaluations, teacher progress notes, transcripts, social worker's records, and

correspondence.

This authorization does not expire until expressly withdrawn by the undersigned.

Date

A copy of this authorization is deemed as valid as the original.

Signature of patient or patient's representative

If a patient's representative signs this authorization, please complete the following:

Printed name of patient's representative:

Relationship to patient

COMMENTARY: This new form is to be used in connection with Request for Production #20.

DAY CARE / CHILD CARE / HOME CARE RECORDS AUTHORIZATION

TO:

(Any day care, child care, home care provider that has provided services to)

(insert name above)

I hereby authorize you to release copies of the records of _______, including educational records to **[**defense firm name**]**, or its authorized representative. "Records" for purposes of this authorization shall include, but not be limited to, attendance records, medical records, occupational therapy records, nurses' notes, progress reports, teacher notes, report cards, achievement scores, evaluations, teacher progress notes, transcripts, social worker's records, and correspondence.

This authorization does not expire until expressly withdrawn by the undersigned.

A copy of this authorization is deemed as valid as the original.

Signature of patient or patient's representative Date

If a patient's representative signs this authorization, please complete the following:

Printed name of patient's representative:

Relationship to patient

COMMENTARY: This new form is to be used in connection with Request for Production #20.

(New) Form 220

Plaintiff's Interrogatories Medical Negligence—Health Care Provider

NO. CV -(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) :SUPERIOR COURT :JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF :AT :DATE

The undersigned, on behalf of the Plaintiff(s), hereby propounds the following Interrogatories to be answered by the Defendant, ______ (Defendant Health Care Provider's Name), under oath, within sixty (60) days of the filing hereof in compliance with Practice Book Section 13-2.

Definition: "You" or "your" shall mean the Defendant to whom these interrogatories are directed, except that if that Defendant has been sued as the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" or "your" shall also refer to the Defendant's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

In answering these interrogatories, the Defendant(s) is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full and do not limit the answer to the interrogatory as a whole. If any interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

(1) State the following:

- (a) Your full name and any other name(s) by which you have been known;
- (b) Your date of birth; and
- (c) Your business address.
- (2) If the Defendant is deceased, state the date and place of death, whether an estate has been created, and the name and address of the Administrator or Executor thereof.

Unless the information requested is provided in your curriculum vitae, respond to Interrogatories #3 through #11:

- (3) State the name of each college and graduate school you attended, the date of graduation, and each degree obtained, or provide your curriculum vitae including such information.
- (4) State the name and address of each medical institution where you underwent post-graduate training (e.g., internship, residency, fellowship, or similar training), and the dates of attendance, or provide your curriculum vitae including such information.
- (5) If you have been trained in a medical or surgical specialty, identify the specialty, the dates you practiced the specialty, and the name and address of each institution where you were trained, or provide your curriculum vitae including such information.
- (6) If you have ever specialized in or limited your practice to a particular field or branch of medicine or surgery, for each specialized or limited practice, state the field or branch of medicine or surgery, the inclusive dates you so practiced, and each location where you so practiced in the past ten years, or

provide your curriculum vitae including such information.

- (7) If you have held any teaching positions, for each institution, state:
 - (a) The name and address of the institution;
 - (b) The inclusive dates of your association; and
 - (c) The title held in each position.
- (8) State the name and location of any hospital or medical facility at which you have or have had appointments and/or clinical privileges in the past ten years, and the dates you had such appointments or privileges.
- (9) Identify each medical book, paper, article, or other document that you have published, written, or contributed, and for each, state the title, whether you were an author, co-author, or contributor.
- (10) State the name of every jurisdiction in which you are or have been licensed as a health care provider.
- (11) State whether you are, or have ever been, a member of any medical or other health care provider association, society or organization, and if so, as to each such membership, state:
 - (a) The name and address of the medical or other health care provider association, society, or organization;
 - (b) The inclusive dates of your membership; and
 - (c) Whether you have ever held any office and, if so, the title of the office and the dates you held such office.
- (12) With respect to any medical specialty board or other specialty board, for each board state, whether you were refused or granted certification, the reasons therefor, and, if granted certification, your title or rank (e.g., diplomate, fellow, member), and whether you still hold such certification, title, or rank.
- (13) During the past ten years have you ever had your privileges or application for privileges denied, revoked, restricted, suspended, or limited in any way at any hospital or medical facility?
- (14) Unless agency or another vicarious liability relationship is admitted to such codefendant, state whether at the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint to the present you were an officer, shareholder, employee, member, partner, or otherwise affiliated with any entity or person involved in the care and treatment of the Plaintiff. If the answer is yes, describe the nature and time period of the affiliation.
- (15) During the ten years prior to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, have you ever had your application for a license denied, revoked, restricted, suspended, or limited in any way in any jurisdiction?
- (16) State the time period(s) of the physician-patient relationship, if any, you had with the Plaintiff.
- (17) With respect to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, did you ever consult with any physician or other health care provider regarding your diagnosis, care, or treatment of the Plaintiff that is not documented in the medical record? If so, identify the person consulted, his or her specialty, and the reason for the consultation.
- (18) Are you aware of any nonprivileged documents concerning consultations, care or treatment of the Plaintiff regarding the negligence alleged in the Complaint that are not contained in the medical records or hospital chart? If so, identify each document.

- (19) If you are covered by an insurance policy under which an insurer may be liable to satisfy part or all of a judgment or reimburse you for payments to satisfy part or all of a judgment relating to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state the following:
 - (a) The name(s) and address(es) of the insured(s);
 - (b) The amount of coverage under each insurance policy; and
 - (c) The name(s) and address(es) of said insurer(s).
- (20) If you are covered by an excess or umbrella insurance policy, or any other insurance policy relating to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state:
 - (a) The name(s) and address(es) of the named insured;
 - (b) The amount of effective coverage; and
 - (c) The name(s) and address(es) of the insurer(s).
- (21) As to each insurance policy identified in response to the preceding two interrogatories, state whether:
 - (a) Any disclaimer or reservation of rights letter has been issued; and
 - (b) It is an eroding policy.
- (22) Pursuant to General Statutes § 19a-17b, were your staff privileges terminated or restricted by a medical review committee conducting a peer review with respect to the negligence alleged in the Complaint? If so, please disclose the specific restriction imposed, if any.
- (23) Have you or any entity or person been sued for medical negligence arising out of your conduct as a health care provider? If so, state the caption, venue and docket number of the lawsuit(s).
- (24) Have you made any statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, to any person regarding any of the allegations in the Complaint?

COMMENT:

Interrogatory #24 is intended to include party statements made to a representative of an insurance company prior to involvement of defense counsel.

- (25) If the answer to the previous interrogatory is affirmative, state:
 - (a) The name and address of the person or persons to whom such statements were made;
 - (b) The date on which such statements were made;
 - (c) The form of the statement (i.e., whether written, made by recording device or recorded by a stenographer, etc.); and
 - (d) The name and address of each person having custody or a copy of each statement.
- (26) Other than those individuals referenced in the medical record, state the names and addresses of all persons known to you who were present at the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint or who observed or witnessed all or part of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.
- (27) As to each individual named in response to the previous interrogatory, state whether, to your knowledge or the knowledge of your attorney, the individual(s) has given any statement or statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, concerning the subject matter of the Complaint. If your answer to this interrogatory is affirmative, state:

- (a) The date on which the statement(s) were taken;
- (b) The names and addresses of the person(s) who took the statement(s);
- (c) The names and addresses of any person(s) present when the statement(s) taken;
- (d) Whether the statement(s) were written, made by recording device or taken by court reporter or stenographer;
- (e) The names and addresses of any person(s) that have custody or copies of the statement(s).
- (28) State whether the Plaintiff was referred to you, and if so, identify the person or entity that made the referral and the date thereof.
- (29) Did you create, use, or maintain any "electronic protected health information" (hereinafter "health information"), as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, during your treatment of Plaintiff?
- (30) If the answer to the previous interrogatory is in the affirmative, list the names of any and all electronic "information system(s)" (hereinafter "EMR system(s)"), as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 164.304, that contain or previously contained the health information of the Plaintiff.
- (31) Identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcripts which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each recording(s) was obtained and the person or persons of whom each such recording was made.

PLAINTIFF,

BY _____

I, _____, hereby certify that I have reviewed the above interrogatories and responses thereto and that they are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

(Defendant)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____day of _____, 20__

Notary Public/ Commissioner of the Superior Court

CERTIFICATION

I certify that a copy of this document was or will immediately be mailed or delivered electronically or non-electronically on (date) ______ to all attorneys and self-represented parties of record and that written consent for electronic delivery was received from all attorneys and self-represented parties of record who received or will immediately be receiving electronic delivery.

Name and address of each party and attorney that copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to*

*If necessary, attach additional sheet or sheets with the name and address which the copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to.

Signed (signature of filer)

Print or type name of person signing

Date Signed

Mailing address (Number, street, town, state and zip code) or Email address, if applicable

Telephone number

COMMENTARY: This new form was developed pursuant to and is to be used in connection with the changes to Section 13-6.

(New) Form 221

Plaintiff's Interrogatories Medical Negligence—Hospital and/or Medical Group

NO. CV -(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) :SUPERIOR COURT :JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF :AT :DATE

The undersigned, on behalf of the Plaintiff(s), hereby propounds the following Interrogatories to be answered by the Defendant, ______ (Defendant Hospital's Name), under oath, within sixty (60) days of the filing hereof in compliance with Practice Book Section 13-2.

Definition: "You" and "your" shall mean the Defendant, and its agents, servants, or employees to whom these interrogatories are directed.

In answering these interrogatories, the Defendant(s) is (are) required to provide all information within their knowledge, possession or power. If an interrogatory has subparts, answer each subpart separately and in full and do not limit the answer to the interrogatory as a whole. If any interrogatories cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

- (1) State the following:
 - (a) Your full name and any other name(s) by which you have been known; and
 - (b) Your business address.
- (2) If you are a business entity that has changed its name or status as a business entity (whether by dissolution, merger, acquisition, name change, or in any other manner) since the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state the date of the change, and describe the change.
- (3) Unless agency or another vicarious liability relationship is admitted as to such codefendant, state whether from the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint to the present you were a shareholder, partner, or otherwise affiliated with any codefendant. If the answer is yes, describe the nature and time period of the affiliation.
- (4) With respect to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, did you ever consult with any physician(s) or health care provider(s) regarding your diagnosis, care, or treatment that is not documented in the medical record? If so, identify the person(s) consulted and their specialty as well the reason for the consult.
- (5) Are you aware of any nonprivileged documents concerning consultations, care or treatment regarding the negligence alleged in the Complaint that are not contained in the medical record or hospital chart? If so, identify each document.
- (6) If you are covered by an insurance policy under which an insurer may be liable to satisfy part or all of a judgment or reimburse you for payments to satisfy part or all of a judgment relating to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state the following:
 - (a) The name(s) and address(es) of the insured(s);

- (b) The amount of coverage under each insurance policy; and
- (c) The name(s) and address(es) of said insurer(s).
- (7) If you are covered by excess or umbrella insurance or any other insurance relating to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state:
 - (a) The name(s) and address(es) of the named insured(s);
 - (b) The amount of coverage effective at this time; and
 - (c) The name(s) and address(es) of said insurer(s).
- (8) As to each insurance policy identified in response to the preceding two interrogatories, state whether:
 - (a) Any disclaimer or reservation of rights letter has been issued; and
 - (b) It is an eroding policy.
- (9) Have you made any statements, as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, to any person regarding any of the allegations in the Complaint?

COMMENT:

Interrogatory #9 is intended to include party statements made to a representative of an insurance company prior to involvement of defense counsel. This interrogatory is not intended to include attorney–client communications.

(10) If the answer to the previous interrogatory is affirmative, state:

- (a) The name and address of the person(s) to whom the statement(s) were made;
- (b) The date the statement(s) were made;
- (c) The form of the statement(s) (i.e., whether written, made by recording device or recorded by a stenographer, etc.); and
- (d) The name and address of the person(s) having custody or copies of the statement(s).
- (11) Other than those individuals referenced in the medical record, state the names and addresses of all persons known to you who were present at the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint or who observed or witnessed all or part of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.
- (12) As to each individual named in response to the previous interrogatory, state whether to your knowledge, or the knowledge of your attorney, the individual(s) has given any statement(s) as defined in Practice Book Section 13-1, concerning the subject matter of the Complaint in this lawsuit. If your answer to this interrogatory is affirmative, state also:
 - (a) The date on which the statement(s) were taken;
 - (b) The names and addresses of the person(s) who took the statement(s);
 - (c) The names and addresses of any person(s) present when the statement(s) were taken;
 - (d) Whether the statement(s) were written, made by recording device or taken by court reporter or stenographer; and
 - (e) The names and addresses of any person(s) having custody or copies of the statement(s).
- (13) Did you create, use, or maintain any "electronic protected health information" (hereinafter "health information"), as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, during the treatment of the Plaintiff?

- (14) If the answer to the previous interrogatory is in the affirmative, list the names and versions of any and all electronic "information system(s)" (hereinafter "EMR system(s)"), as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 164.304, that contain or previously contained the health information of the Plaintiff.
- (15) Indicate whether you were accredited by the Joint Commission (formerly Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations [JCAHO]) during the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint.
- (16) With respect to the negligence alleged in the Complaint, state whether you had any manuals, directives, instructions, guidelines, and/or written or unwritten protocols related to specific allegations of negligence in the Complaint that were in effect at the office, hospital, or other medical facility where the defendant physician or health care provider practiced at the time of the negligence alleged in the Complaint concerning:
 - (a) Care, treatment, monitoring, evaluation, diagnosis, consultation or referral to others, at the time of the event(s) that is(are) the subject of this litigation;
 - (b) Training requirements and/or protocols for any physician or health care provider, including but not limited to medical staff, caring for, evaluating, diagnosing, consulting or referring patients either in the facility, department, or unit where the care, treatment, evaluation, diagnosis, consultation or referral to others at issue took place; and
 - (c) Reporting and/or investigation of adverse events at the facility, department, or unit where the care, treatment, evaluation, diagnosis, consultation or referral to others at issue took place.

COMMENT:

There is no corresponding request for production to Interrogatory #16, but documents may be pursued by way of supplemental discovery.

(17) Identify surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by stating the name and address of any person who obtained or prepared any and all recordings, by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party concerning this lawsuit or its subject matter, including any transcript thereof which are in your possession or control or in the possession or control of your attorney, and state the date on which each such recordings were obtained and the person or persons of whom each such recording was made.

PLAINTIFF,

BY_____

I, _____, hereby certify that I have reviewed the above interrogatories and responses thereto and that they are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

(Defendant)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____, 20___

Notary Public/ Commissioner of the Superior Court

CERTIFICATION

I certify that a copy of this document was or will immediately be mailed or delivered electronically or non-electronically on (date) ______ to all attorneys and self-represented parties of record and that written consent for electronic delivery was received from all attorneys and self-represented parties of record who received or will be immediately be receiving electronic delivery.

Name and address of each party and attorney that copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to*

*If necessary, attach additional sheet or sheets with the name and address which the copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to.

Signed (signature of filer)

Print or type name of person signing

Date Signed

Mailing address (Number, street, town, state and zip code) or Email address, if applicable Telephone number

COMMENTARY: This new form was developed pursuant to and is to be used in connection with the changes to Section 13-6.

(New) Form 222

Plaintiff's Requests for Production Medical Negligence—Health Care Provider

NO.CV-(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) SUPERIOR COURT JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF AT DATE

The Plaintiff(s) hereby request(s) that the Defendant ______(Defendant Health Care Provider's Name) provide counsel for the Plaintiff(s) with copies of the documents described in the following requests for production, or afford counsel for said Plaintiff(s) the opportunity or, if necessary, sufficient written authorization, to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce said documents. The production of such documents, copies or written authorizations shall take place at the offices of ______ on _____ (day), _____ (date) at _____ (time).

In answering these production requests, the Defendant(s) are required to provide all information within their possession, custody or control. If any production request cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

Definition: "You" and "your" shall mean the Defendant to whom these interrogatories are directed, except that if the Defendant has been sued as the representative of the estate of a decedent, ward, or incapable person, "you" shall also refer to the Defendant's decedent, ward or incapable person unless the context of an interrogatory clearly indicates otherwise.

- (1) All documents, (excluding privileged documents, such as attorney-client, work product, and peer review documents), that you know of, possess, or have power to obtain, concerning the Plaintiff's care, scheduling, appointments, treatment, evaluation, diagnosis, consultation or referral to others including but not limited to:
 - (a) All documents normally maintained as part of a patient's designated health record;
 - (b) Office management records including jackets, file covers, face sheets, transmittal documents for any requests for studies or consultations, and/or transportation records;
 - (c) Nursing notes;
 - (d) Hospital records;
 - (e) Laboratory records;
 - (f) Testing records;
 - (g) Radiology requisitions, reports, images/studies (lossless images), and audio recordings of radiology reviews;
 - (h) Notes, sticky notes or written markings;
 - (i) Pharmacy medication records;
 - (j) Automated medication dispensing system records;
 - (k) Any images/photographs taken during treatment or pathological examination;
 - (1) Pathology reports;
 - (m) Drafts and/or audio recordings of pathology reports;
 - (n) Quality improvement documents related to root cause analysis;
 - (o) Documents provided in connection with a peer review;
 - (p) Intradepartment transportation records;

- (q) Laboratory test results;
- (r) Documents and communications concerning the Plaintiff and the allegations in the Complaint; and
- (s) Investigations or reports concerning the incident that is the subject of this lawsuit.

COMMENT:

Where privilege is claimed, counsel shall follow the relevant Practice Book rule(s). This request contemplates production of all medical records and documents, not limited to the treatment related to the allegations in the complaint, subject to plaintiff providing a HIPAA compliant authorization if necessary.

- (2) Your current curriculum vitae.
- (3) Each document identified in response to Interrogatory #18.
- (4) A copy of the declaration page(s) of each insurance policy identified in response to Interrogatories #19 and #20.
- (5) If the answer to Interrogatory #21 is in the affirmative, a copy of the complete policy contents of each insurance policy identified in response to Interrogatories #19 and #20.
- (6) Each nonprivileged statement identified in response to Interrogatories #25 and #27.
- (7) A copy of each and every recording of surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3 (c), by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party to this lawsuit concerning this lawsuit or the subject matter thereof, including any transcript of such recording.

PLAINTIFF,

Ву_____
CERTIFICATION

I certify that a copy of this document was or will immediately be mailed or delivered electronically or non-electronically on (date) _____ to all attorneys and self-represented parties of record and that written consent for electronic delivery was received from all attorneys and self-represented parties of record who received or will immediately be receiving electronic delivery

Name and address of each party and attorney that copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to*

*If necessary attach additional sheet or sheets with the name and address which the copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to.

Signed (Signature of filer)	Print or type name of person signing	Date Signed
Mailing address (Number, street, town, state and zip code) or Email address, if applicable		Telephone number

COMMENTARY: This new form was developed pursuant to and is to be used in connection with the changes to Section 13-9.

(New) Form 223

Plaintiff's Requests for Production Medical Negligence—Hospital/Medical Group

NO.CV-(Plaintiff) VS. (Defendant) SUPERIOR COURT JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF AT DATE

The Plaintiff(s) hereby request(s) that the Defendant _____ (Defendant Hospital's Name) provide counsel for the Plaintiff(s) with copies of the documents described in the following requests for production, or afford counsel for said Plaintiff(s) the opportunity or, if necessary, sufficient written authorization, to inspect, copy, photograph or otherwise reproduce said documents. The production of such documents, copies or written authorizations shall take place at the offices of ______ on _____ (day), _____ (date) at ______ (time).

In answering these production requests, the Defendant(s) are required to provide all information within their possession, custody or control. If any production request cannot be answered in full, answer to the extent possible.

Definition: "You" and "your" shall mean the Defendant, and its agents, servants, or employees to whom these requests for production are directed.

- (1) All documents,(excluding privileged documents such as attorney-client, work product, and peer review documents), that you know of, possess, or have power to obtain concerning the Plaintiff's care, scheduling, appointments, treatment, evaluation, diagnosis, consultation or referral to others, including but not limited to:
 - (a) All documents typically maintained as part of a patient's designated health record;
 - (b) Office management records including jackets, file covers, face sheets, transmittal documents for any requests for studies or consultations, and/or transportation records;
 - (c) Nursing notes;
 - (d) Hospital records;
 - (e) Laboratory records;
 - (f) Testing records;
 - (g) Radiology requisitions, reports, images/studies (lossless images), and audio recordings of radiology reviews;
 - (h) Notes, sticky notes or written markings;
 - (i) Pharmacy medication records;
 - (j) Automated medication dispensing system records;
 - (k) Any images/photographs taken during treatment or pathological examination;
 - (1) Pathology reports;
 - (m) Drafts and/or audio recordings of pathology reports;
 - (n) Quality improvement documents related to root cause analysis;
 - (o) Documents provided in connection with a peer review;
 - (p) Intradepartment transportation records;
 - (q) Laboratory test results;
 - (r) Documents and communications concerning the subject matter of the Complaint; and
 - (s) Investigations or reports concerning the Plaintiff and the allegations in the Complaint.

COMMENT:

Where privilege is claimed, counsel shall follow the relevant Practice Book rule(s). This request contemplates production of all medical records and documents, not limited to the treatment related to the allegations in the complaint, subject to plaintiff providing a HIPAA compliant authorization if necessary.

- (2) Each document identified in response to Interrogatory #5.
- (3) A copy of the declaration page(s) of each insurance policy identified in response to Interrogatories #6 and #7.
- (4) If the answer to Interrogatory #8 is in the affirmative, a copy of the complete policy contents of each insurance policy identified in response to Interrogatories #6 and #7.
- (5) Each non-privileged statement identified in response to Interrogatories #10 and #12.
- (6) A copy of each and every recording of surveillance material discoverable under Practice Book Section 13-3(c), by film, photograph, videotape, audiotape or any other digital or electronic means, of any party to this lawsuit concerning this lawsuit or the subject matter thereof, including any transcript of such recording.

PLAINTIFF,

By _____

CERTIFICATION

I certify that a copy of this document was or will immediately be mailed or delivered electronically or non-electronically on (date) _____ to all attorneys and self-represented parties of record and that written consent for electronic delivery was received from all attorneys and self-represented parties of record who received or will immediately be receiving electronic delivery.

Name and address of each party and attorney that copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to*

*If necessary attach additional sheet or sheets with the name and address which the copy was or will immediately be mailed or delivered to.

Signed (Signature of filer)	Print or type name of person signing	Date Signed
Mailing address (Number, street, town, state and zip code) or Email address, if applicable		Telephone number

COMMENTARY: This new form was developed pursuant to and is to be used in connection with the changes to Section 13-9.

APPENDIX B (020821)

Rule 8.4. Misconduct

It is professional misconduct for a lawyer to:

(1) Violate or attempt to violate the Rules of Professional Conduct, knowingly assist or induce another to do so, or do so through the acts of another;

(2) Commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer's honesty, trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer in other respects;

(3) Engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation;

(4) Engage in conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of justice;

(5) State or imply an ability to influence improperly a government agency or official or to achieve results by means that violate the Rules of Professional Conduct or other law; [or]

(6) Knowingly assist a judge or judicial officer in conduct that is a violation of applicable rules of judicial conduct or other law[.]: or

(7) Engage in conduct that the lawyer knows or reasonably should know is harassment or discrimination on the basis of race, color, ancestry, sex, pregnancy, religion, national origin, ethnicity, disability, status as a veteran, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression or marital status in conduct related to the practice of law. This paragraph does not limit the ability of a lawyer to accept, decline or withdraw

from a representation, or to provide advice, assistance or advocacy consistent with these Rules.

COMMENTARY: Lawyers are subject to discipline when they violate or attempt to violate the Rules of Professional Conduct, knowingly assist or induce another to do so or do so through the acts of another, as when they request or instruct an agent to do so on the lawyer's behalf. Subdivision (1), however, does not prohibit a lawyer from advising a client concerning action the client is legally entitled to take.

Many kinds of illegal conduct reflect adversely on fitness to practice law, such as offenses involving fraud and the offense of wilful failure to file an income tax return. However, some kinds of offenses carry no such implication. Traditionally, the distinction was drawn in terms of offenses involving "moral turpitude." That concept can be construed to include offenses concerning some matters of personal morality, such as adultery and comparable offenses, which have no specific connection to fitness for the practice of law. Although a lawyer is personally answerable to the entire criminal law, a lawyer should be professionally answerable only for offenses that indicate lack of those characteristics relevant to law practice. Offenses involving violence, dishonesty, breach of trust, or serious interference with the administration of justice are in that category. A pattern of repeated offenses, even ones of minor significance when considered separately, can indicate indifference to legal obligation. Counseling or assisting a client with regard to conduct expressly permitted under Connecticut law is not conduct that reflects adversely on a lawyer's fitness notwithstanding any conflict with federal or other law. Nothing in this commentary shall be construed to provide a defense to a presentment filed pursuant to Practice Book Section 2-41.

[A lawyer who, in the course of representing a client, knowingly manifests by words or conduct, bias or prejudice based upon race, sex, religion, national origin, disability, age, sexual orientation or socioeconomic status, violates subdivision (4) when such actions are prejudicial to the administration of justice. Legitimate advocacy respecting the foregoing factors does not violate subdivision (4).]

Discrimination and harassment in the practice of law undermine confidence in the legal profession and the legal system. Discrimination includes harmful verbal or physical conduct directed at an individual or individuals that manifests bias or prejudice on the basis of one or more of the protected categories. Not all conduct that involves consideration of these characteristics manifests bias or prejudice: there may be a legitimate nondiscriminatory basis for the conduct.

Harassment includes severe or pervasive derogatory or demeaning verbal or physical conduct. Harassment on the basis of sex includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other unwelcome verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature.

The substantive law of antidiscrimination and antiharassment statutes and case law should guide application of paragraph (7), where applicable. Where the conduct in guestion is subject to federal or state antidiscrimination or antiharassment law, a lawyer's conduct does not violate paragraph (7) when the conduct does not violate such law. Moreover, an administrative or judicial finding of a violation of state or federal antidiscrimination or antiharassment laws does not alone establish a violation of paragraph (7). <u>A lawyer's conduct does not violate paragraph (7) when the conduct in question is</u> protected under the First Amendment of the Constitution of the United States or Article <u>First, Section 4 of the Connecticut Constitution.</u>

<u>Conduct related to the practice of law includes representing clients; interacting with</u> <u>witnesses, coworkers, court personnel, lawyers and others while engaged in the practice</u> <u>of law; operating or managing a law firm or law practice; and participating in bar</u> <u>association, business or professional activities or events in connection with the practice</u> <u>of law. Lawyers may engage in conduct undertaken to promote diversity, equity and</u> <u>inclusion without violating this Rule by, for example, implementing initiatives aimed at</u> <u>recruiting, hiring, retaining and advancing diverse employees or sponsoring diverse law</u> <u>student organizations.</u>

A trial judge's finding that peremptory challenges were exercised on a discriminatory basis does not alone establish a violation of paragraph (7). Moreover, no disciplinary violation may be found where a lawyer exercises a peremptory challenge on a basis that is permitted under substantive law. A lawyer does not violate paragraph (7) by limiting the scope or subject matter of the lawyer's practice or by limiting the lawyer's practice to members of a particular segment of the population in accordance with these Rules and other law. A lawyer may charge and collect reasonable fees and expenses for a representation. Rule 1.5(a). Lawyers also should be mindful of their professional obligations under Rule 6.1 to provide legal services to those who are unable to pay, and their obligation under Rule 6.2 not to avoid appointments from a tribunal except for good cause. See Rule 6.2(1), (2) and (3). A lawyer's representation of a client does not constitute an endorsement by the lawyer of the client's views or activities. See Rule 1.2(b).

[A lawyer may refuse to comply with an obligation imposed by law upon a good faith belief that no valid obligation exists.] The provisions of Rule 1.2 (d) concerning a good faith challenge to the validity, scope, meaning or application of the law apply to challenges of legal regulation of the practice of law.

Lawyers holding public office assume legal responsibilities going beyond those of other citizens. A lawyer's abuse of public office can suggest an inability to fulfill the professional role of a lawyer. The same is true of abuse of positions of private trust, such as trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, agent and officer, director or manager of a corporation or other organization.

APPENDIX C

(020821)

Sec. 35a-20. Motions for Reinstatement of Parent [or Former Legal Guardian] as Guardian [or Modification of Guardianship Post-Disposition]

(a) Whenever a parent [or former legal guardian] whose guardianship rights to a child or youth were removed and transferred to another person or an agency other than the Department of Children and Families by the Superior Court for juvenile matters seeks reinstatement as that child's or youth's guardian, the parent [or former legal guardian] may file a motion for reinstatement of guardianship with the court that ordered the transfer of guardianship. [In other post-dispositional cases concerning a child or youth whose legal guardianship was transferred to a person other than a parent or former legal guardian, or to an agency other than the Department of Children and Families, any person permitted to intervene may move the court to modify the award of guardianship.]

(b) The clerk shall assign such motion a hearing date and issue a summons to the current guardian and the nonmoving parent or parents. The moving party shall cause a copy of such motion and summons to be served on the child's or youth's current legal guardian(s) and the nonmoving parent or parents.

(c) Before acting on such motion, the judicial authority shall determine if the court still has custody jurisdiction and shall request, if necessary, that the Commissioner of the Department of Children and Families conduct an investigation and submit a home study that sets forth written findings and recommendations before rendering a decision. (d) The hearing on a motion for reinstatement of guardianship is dispositional in nature. [The party] If the parent seeking reinstatement of guardianship <u>demonstrates that</u> the factors that resulted in the parent's removal as guardian are resolved satisfactorily, the parent is entitled to a presumption that reinstatement is in the best interest of the child or youth. The party opposing reinstatement of guardianship has the burden of proof to rebut this presumption by clear and convincing evidence. [establish that cause for transfer of guardianship to another person or agency no longer exists. The judicial authority shall then determine if reinstatement of guardianship is in the child's or youth's best interest.

(e) The hearing on a motion for post-dispositional modification of a guardianship order is dispositional in nature. The party seeking to modify the existing guardianship order has the burden of proof to establish that the movant's proposed guardian is suitable and worthy. The judicial authority shall then determine if transfer of guardianship to that proposed guardian is in the child's or youth's best interest.]

COMMENTARY: Consistent with the decision in *In Re Zakai F.* (SC 202034) (July 22, 2020), this amendment to Section 35a-20 specifies the presumptions and burdens when a parent whose guardianship rights were removed seeks reinstatement, and transfers the provisions related to reinstatement by former legal guardians to new Section 35a-20A.

(NEW) Sec. 35a-20A. Motions for Reinstatement of Former Legal Guardian as Guardian or Modification of Guardianship Post-Disposition

(a) Whenever a former legal guardian whose guardianship rights to a child or youth were removed and transferred to another person or an agency other than the Department of Children and Families by the Superior Court for juvenile matters seeks reinstatement as that child's or youth's guardian, the former legal guardian may file a motion for reinstatement of guardianship with the court that ordered the transfer of guardianship. In other post-dispositional cases concerning a child or youth whose legal guardianship was transferred to a person other than a parent or former legal guardian, or to an agency other than the Department of Children and Families, any person permitted to intervene may move the court to modify the award of guardianship.

(b) The clerk shall assign such motion a hearing date and issue a summons to the current guardian and the parent or parents. The moving party shall cause a copy of such motion and summons to be served on the child's or youth's current legal guardian(s) and the parent or parents.

(c) Before acting on such motion, the judicial authority shall determine if the court still has custody jurisdiction and shall request, if necessary, that the Commissioner of the Department of Children and Families conduct an investigation and submit a home study that sets forth written findings and recommendations before rendering a decision.

(d) The hearing on a motion for reinstatement of guardianship is dispositional in nature. The former legal guardian seeking reinstatement of guardianship has the burden of proof to establish that cause for transfer of guardianship to another person or agency no longer exists. The judicial authority shall then determine if reinstatement of guardianship is in the child's or youth's best interest.

(e) The hearing on a motion for post-dispositional modification of a guardianship order is dispositional in nature. The party seeking to modify the existing guardianship order has the burden of proof to establish that the movant's proposed guardian is suitable and worthy. The judicial authority shall then determine if transfer of guardianship to that proposed guardian is in the child's or youth's best interest.

COMMENTARY: New Section 35a-20A contains provisions related to reinstatement of guardianship by former legal guardians, which were previously contained in Section 35a-20. The amendments to Section 35a-20 were made for consistency with *In Re Zakai F.* (SC 202034) (July 22, 2020).

APPENDIX D

(020821)

Sec. 2-27. Clients' Funds; Lawyer Registration

(a) Consistent with the requirement of Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct, each lawyer or law firm shall maintain, separate from the lawyer's or the firm's personal funds, one or more accounts accurately reflecting the status of funds handled by the lawyer or firm as fiduciary or attorney, and shall not use such funds for any unauthorized purpose.

(b) Each lawyer or law firm maintaining one or more trust accounts as defined in Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct and Section 2-28 (b) shall keep records of the maintenance and disposition of all funds of clients or of third persons held by the lawyer or firm in a fiduciary capacity from the time of receipt to the time of final distribution. Each lawyer or law firm shall retain the records required by Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct for a period of seven years after termination of the representation.

(c) Such books of account and statements of reconciliation, and any other records required to be maintained pursuant to Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct, shall be made available upon request of the Statewide Grievance Committee or its counsel, or the disciplinary counsel for review, examination or audit upon receipt of notice by the Statewide Grievance Committee of an overdraft notice as provided by Section 2-28 (f). Upon the filing of a grievance complaint or a finding of probable cause, such records shall be made available upon request of the Statewide Grievance Committee, its counsel or the disciplinary counsel for review or audit.

(d) Each lawyer shall register with the Statewide Grievance Committee, on a form devised by the committee, the address of the lawyer's office or offices maintained for the practice of law, the lawyer's office e-mail address and business telephone number, the name and address of every financial institution with which the lawyer maintains any account in which the funds of more than one client are kept and the identification number of any such account. Such registrations will be made on an annual basis and at such time as the lawyer changes his or her address or addresses or location or identification number of any such trust account in which the funds of more than one client are kept. The registration forms filed pursuant to this subsection and pursuant to Section 2-26 shall not be public; however, all information obtained by the Statewide Grievance Committee from these forms shall be public, except the following: trust account identification numbers; the lawyer's home address, unless no office address is registered and then only if the home address is part of the public record of a grievance complaint as defined in Section 2-50 or the attorney uses the attorney's personal juris number to appear in a matter in this state; the lawyer's office e-mail address; and the lawyer's birth date. Unless otherwise ordered by the court, all nonpublic information obtained from these forms shall be available only to the Statewide Grievance Committee and its counsel, the reviewing committees, the grievance panels and their counsel, the bar examining committee, the standing committee on recommendations for admission to the bar, disciplinary counsel, the client security fund committee and its counsel, a judge of the Superior Court, a judge of the United States District Court for the District of Connecticut, any grievance committee

or other disciplinary authority of the United States District Court for the District of Connecticut or, with the consent of the lawyer, to any other person. In addition, the trust account identification numbers on the registration forms filed pursuant to Section 2-26 and this section shall be available to the organization designated by the judges of the Superior Court to administer the IOLTA program pursuant to Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct. The registration requirements of this subsection shall not apply to judges of the Supreme, Appellate or Superior Courts, judge trial referees, family support magistrates, federal judges, federal magistrate judges, federal administrative law judges or federal bankruptcy judges.

(e) The Statewide Grievance Committee or its counsel may conduct random inspections and audits of accounts maintained pursuant to Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct to determine whether such accounts are in compliance with the rule and this section. If any random inspection or audit performed under this subsection discloses an apparent violation of this section or the Rules of Professional Conduct, the matter may be referred to a grievance panel for further investigation or to the disciplinary counsel for presentment to the Superior Court. Any lawyer whose accounts are selected for inspection or audit under this section shall fully cooperate with the inspection or audit, which cooperation shall not be construed to be a violation of Rule 1.6 (a) of the Rules of Professional Conduct. Any records, documents or information obtained or produced pursuant to a random inspection or audit shall remain confidential unless and until a presentment is initiated by the disciplinary counsel alleging a violation of Rule 1.15 of the Rules of Professional Conduct or of this section, or probable cause is found by the grievance panel, the Statewide Grievance Committee or a reviewing committee.

Contemporaneously with the commencement of a presentment or the filing of a grievance complaint, notice shall be given in writing by the Statewide Grievance Committee to any client or third person whose identity may be publicly disclosed through the disclosure of records obtained or produced in accordance with this subsection. Thereafter, public disclosure of such records shall be subject to the client or third person having thirty days from the issuance of the notice to seek a court order restricting publication of any such records disclosing confidential information. During the thirty day period, or the pendency of any such motion, any document filed with the court or as part of a grievance record shall refer to such clients or third persons by pseudonyms or with appropriate redactions, unless otherwise ordered by the court.

(f) Violation of this section shall constitute misconduct.

COMMENTARY: Attorneys are required to register the office address(es) where the attorney practices law, and the attorney's home address. The attorney's office address is public information and is the address where the Judicial Branch interacts with the attorney. Generally, an attorney's home address is not public information. When an attorney fails to register an office address, however, the Judicial Branch interacts with the attorney by using the attorney's home address. These interactions may result in the attorney's home address becoming publicly available or displayed online. For example, if an attorney has not registered an office address and the attorney is the subject of a grievance complaint, then the Statewide Grievance Committee mails the complaint to the attorney's home address, and that notice and any other documents related to the complaint become part of the record. The record is available to the Complainant at any time, and if probable cause of misconduct is found, to the public. See Practice Book Section 2-50. Also, when an attorney appears in a matter using the attorney's personal juris number, the court uses the address registered by the attorney both to interact with the attorney and to display online via the Judicial Branch case lookup application. If the attorney fails to register an office address, then the address used by the court and displayed online will be the attorney's home address.